
1

City of Kelowna
Regular Council Meeting

AGENDA

Monday, April 29, 2013

1:30 pm

Council Chamber

City Hall, 1435 Water Street

Pages

1. Call to Order

This meeting is open to the public and all representations to Council form part of the
public record. A live audio feed is being broadcast and recorded by CastaNet and a
delayed broadcast is shown on Shaw Cable.

2. Confirmation of Minutes 5 - 12

Regular PM Meeting - April 22, 2013

3. Public in Attendance

3.1 2012 United Way Campaign - Quantum Leap Giving Award

To present Council with the Quantum Leap Giving Award for the 2012 United
Way Campaign.

4. Development Application Reports & Related Bylaws

4.1 Heritage Designation Application No. HD13-0001 - 0874309 BC Ltd., 784 Elliot
Avenue

13 - 18

To designate “Copeland House” as a municipal heritage building under Section
967 of the Local Government Act.

4.1.1 Bylaw No. 10841 (HD13-0001) - Heritage Designation Bylaw "Copeland
House" - 0874309 BC Ltd., 784 Elliot Avenue

19 - 19

To give Bylaw No. 10841 first reading.



2

4.2 Heritage Revitalization Agreement Application No. HRA12-0001 - 0874309 BC
Ltd., 784 Elliot Avenue

20 - 72

This application proposes to restore the heritage house located at 784 Elliot
Avenue through the mechanism of a Heritage Revitalization Agreement (HRA).
The building on the site currently has 10 existing non-conforming suites. With
the HRA, the applicant is proposing to reconfigure the interior of the building
to construct 6 suites. In phase two of the plan, a building addition to contain 3
suites is proposed.

4.2.1 Bylaw No. 10840 (HRA12-0001) - Heritage Revitalization Agreement
Authorization Bylaw, 0874309 BC Ltd., 784 Elliot Avenue

73 - 97

To give Bylaw No. 10840 first reading.

4.3 Development Permit Application No. DP13-0013 - Lipkovits Holdings Ltd., 320
Nickel Road

98 - 122

To consider a Development Permit for a 6 unit multi- residential development.

4.4 Rezoning Application No. Z10-0044, Extension Request - Nathan Morden, 120
Homer Road

123 - 125

To extend the deadline for adoption of the Zone Amending Bylaw from March
21, 2013 to March 21, 2014.

4.5 Rezoning Application No. Z10-0104, Extension Request - Eric and Margaret
Nickel, 1205, 1215, 1223 & 1229 Richter Street

126 - 128

To extend the deadline for adoption of the Zone Amending Bylaw from March
7, 2013 to March 7, 2014.

4.6 Rezoning Application No. Z10-0096, Extension Request - 0831627 BC Ltd., 540
Osprey Avenue

129 - 131

To extend the deadline for adoption of the Zone Amending Bylaw from March
8, 2013 to March 8, 2014.

4.7 Official Community Plan Bylaw Amendment Application No. OCP08-0011 and
Rezoning Application No. Z07-0079, Extension Request - Kathleen (Kimble)
Mooney, 526 Hawes Court (formerly known as 5007 Chute Lake Road)

132 - 134

To extend the deadline for adoption of the OCP and Zone Amending Bylaws
from February 24, 2013 to February 24, 2014.

4.8 OCP 2030 Bylaw 10500 – Miscellaneous Amendments (Bylaw 10746)



3

THIS AGENDA ITEM HAS BEEN WITHDRAWN BY STAFF.

4.8.1 Bylaw No. 10746 (OCP12-0010) - City of Kelowna, Miscellaneous
Amendments

THIS AGENDA ITEM HAS BEEN WITHDRAWN BY STAFF.

5. Non-Development Reports & Related Bylaws

5.1 Okanagan Car Share Co-Op Parking Spaces 135 - 139

To allow the use of three City owned parking spaces at no charge by Okanagan
Car Share Co-op for a period of one year.

5.2 Library Parkade Expansion, Ellis Parkade Project Update 140 - 143

To provide Council with an update on scope and funding requirements of the
downtown parkade projects.

6. Resolutions

6.1 Draft Resolution, Cancellation of the May 7, 2013 Public Hearing and Regular
Meeting

144 - 144

To cancel the May 7, 2013 Public Hearing and Regular Meeting.

7. Bylaws for Adoption (Non-Development Related)

7.1 Bylaw No. 10824 – Sterile Insect Release Program Parcel Tax Bylaw 2013 145 - 159

To consider adoption of Bylaw No. 10824, being Sterile Insect Release Program
Parcel Tax Bylaw 2013.

7.2 Bylaw No. 10842 - Road Closure and Removal of Highway Dedication  - Portion
of Land West of 4753 Gordon Drive

160 - 162

Mayor to invite anyone in the public gallery who deems themselves affected
by the proposed road closure to come foward.
To consider adoption of Bylaw No. 10842 being Road Closure and Removal of
Highway Dedication - Portion of Land West of 4753 Gordon Drive.

8. Mayor and Councillor Items

9. Termination



4



5



6



7



8



9



10



11



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: April 11, 2013 

RIM No. 1240-04 

To: City Manager 

From: Land Use Management, Community Sustainability (BD) 

Application: HD13-0001 Owner: 
0874309 B.C. Ltd., Inc No. 
BC874309   

Address: 784 Elliot Avenue Applicant: Jackie Gorton 

Subject: Heritage Designation  

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT City Council consider designation of the building located at Lot 3, District Lot 138, ODYD 
Plan 9360, 784 Elliot Avenue, Kelowna, B.C., commonly known as the “Copeland House” as a 
Municipal Heritage Site to Section 967 of the Local Government Act; 
 
AND FURTHER THAT the Heritage designation Bylaw be forwarded to a Public Hearing for further 
consideration. 

2.0 Purpose   

To designate “Copeland House” as a municipal heritage building under Section 967 of the Local 
Government Act. 

3.0 Land Use Management   

The building is currently listed on the Municipal Heritage Register and is seeking protection 
through the Heritage Revitalization Agreement pursuant to Section 966 of the Local Government 
Act.  The applicant is committed to having the ‘Copeland House’ designated under Section 967 of 
the Local Government Act as a municipal building to ensure additional long-term protection for 
the structure. Staff fully endorse the preservation of City’s heritage assets to ensure the 
longevity of historically important sites.  

4.0 Heritage Designation Bylaw Background Information: 

The owners of the subject property have voluntarily requested that “Copeland House” be 
designated as a municipal heritage site and be called “the Copeland House”. The house is 
currently located on the Heritage Register which identifies it as having heritage significance; 

however the registry provides very limited protection.  

Once a property is designated, the owner must obtain a Heritage Alteration Permit to make 
alterations to the building exterior thereby protecting the heritage integrity. The City 

12



HD13-0001 – Page 2 

 
 

acknowledges that some changes to a protected heritage property are inevitable and a flexible 
approach is required when implementing reasonable and necessary changes while maintaining 
and protecting the building's noteworthy heritage characteristics. 

4.1 Heritage Value and Heritage Character: 

The house has value for its association with Robert Andrew (Bob) Copeland (1864-1955), married 
to Jane (Belle) Copeland, who built the house when he came to Kelowna in the spring of 1907. He 
had previously operated a hotel in Grenfell, Saskatchewan, for twenty years. He had served as an 
auxiliary in the Northwest Rebellion, part of the 'Grenfell Connection.' Copeland became a 
director of the Central Okanagan Land Company and served as an alderman from 1911 to 1916. 
Copeland Place was named for him. (767 Copeland Place was originally the barn and 789 
Copeland Place the ice house formerly associated with the historic place).  
 
In 1917 the Copeland’s left Kelowna and took up farming in the Lumby district. Bob was president 
of the United Farmers of British Columbia from 1919 to 1921. In 1942, the Copeland’s sold the 
farm and returned to retirement in Kelowna.  
 
The historic place also has value for changing its use with changes in the neighbourhood. It was 
apparently still a single residence in 1938, owned by W.R. Miller. In 1941 it was listed as a 
rooming house, owned by Jacob Vohl. During the acute housing shortage of WWII in 1942, owner 
Ethel Yegl (later Mrs. Ethel Bryan) remodelled it as eight apartments, with two rooms each. 
"Elliot Apartments" went through a series of at least fifteen owners between 1940 and 1965.  
 
The house is a good example of a Foursquare, with its square (or nearly square) plan and the 
medium-pitched hipped roof. The type is clearly legible, although its external details have been 
considerably modified over the years.  
 
Character defining elements: 

 Good example of a foursquare form with a medium- pitch hipped roof 

 Symmetrical fenestration, double-hung, wood sash windows 

 Mature landscaping around perimeter of the property 

 Uniform stucco finish 

4.2 Compatibility with the Official Community Plan and planning objectives: 

The Heritage Designation of the “Copeland House” is compatible with the policy direction of the 
Official Community Plan which promotes the conservation of heritage buildings listed in the 
Kelowna Heritage Register.  Specifically, the Official Community Plan Objective 9.2 seeks to 
identify and conserve heritage resources. By designating a site, the longevity of the heritage 
asset is maintained. 

4.3 Compatibility of Conservation with Lawful Uses of the Property and Adjoining Lands: 

The proposal is consistent with the designation as a residential property, however is not 
consistent with the single/two residential uses found in the area.  The property is zoned RU6 – 
Two Dwelling housing which only permits 2 units per site.  It is noteworthy that the land use of 
the area was established relatively recently, and the subject property has been used as 
apartments since the 1940’s.  The use of the property as a multi-unit residential building is 
seeking formalization through a Heritage Revitalization Agreement that is being considered by 
Council concurrent to this application. 
 

13



HD13-0001 – Page 3 

 
 

4.4  Condition and Economic Viability of the Property: 

The Kelowna Heritage Register indicates a number of elements have been added to the building.  
The building and grounds are currently undergoing restoration to bring the building back to a 
state worthy of designation. Once the restoration is complete, the units in the building will be 
rented.  

4.5 Possible Need for Financial or Other Support to Enable Appropriate Conservation: 

The applicant intends to apply for the City’s Heritage Tax Incentive Program if the accompanying 
Heritage Revitalization Agreement is approved by Council.  The building, however, will be 
completely rehabilitated negating the need for major financial assistance in the near future. 

5.0 Application Chronology   

Date of Application Received: April 10, 2013 

Community Heritage Commission   

The above noted application was reviewed by the Community Heritage Commission at the 
meeting on January 10, 2013 and the following recommendations were passed: 

THAT the Community Heritage Committee supports the proposal under the Heritage 
Revitalization Agreement HRA12-0001 including variances, for 784 Elliot Avenue; 

AND THAT further consideration be given to restoring the verandah to an increased width 
from the front elevation so as to visually better represent the original condition; 

AND FURTHER THAT consideration also be given to modifying the roof access structure to 
lessen its visual impact on the widow's walk. 

ANECTODAL COMMENT:  

CHC recognized that what is now the front of the building was originally the back of the building 
and that there is an exchange of authenticity for restoration of architectural character. 
 

Designating a building provides a higher level of protection to Heritage properties. Given the 
investment the applicant is making in restoring the building, it is appropriate that the CHC 
would support a designation, although not captured in the meeting minutes. 

Report prepared by: 

      
Birte Decloux, Land Use Planner  
 

Reviewed by:    Danielle Noble, Manager, Urban Land Use 

Approved for Inclusion:  Doug Gilchrist, Acting General Manager, Community 
Sustainability for the Director, Land Use Management 

 

Attachments:   

Site Plan 
Statement of Significance 

14



15



16



17



18



 

REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: April 3, 2013 

RIM No. 1240-30 

To: City Manager 

From: Land Use Management, Community Sustainability (BD) 

Application: HRA12-0001 Owner: 
0874309 B.C. Ltd., Inc No. 
BC874309   

Address: 784 Elliot Avenue Applicant: Jackie Gorton 

Subject: Heritage Revitalization Agreement   

Existing OCP Designation: Single/Two Residential 

Existing Zone: RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT Council consider a bylaw which would authorize the City of Kelowna to enter into a 
Heritage Revitalization Agreement for the property legally known as Lot 3, District Lot 138, ODYD 
Plan 9360 located on 784 Elliot Avenue, Kelowna, BC, in the form attached as Schedule “A” to 
the Report from the Land Use Management Department dated April 3, 2013; 
 
AND THAT the Heritage Revitalization Agreement Authorization Bylaw be forwarded to a Public 
Hearing for further consideration;  
 
AND THAT final adoption of the Heritage Revitalization Agreement Authorization be considered 
subsequent to the requirements of the Development Engineering Branch being completed to their 
satisfaction; 
 
AND FURTHER THAT the applicant be required to post a Landscape Performance Security bond 
with the City in the form of a "Letter of Credit" or cash in the amount of 125% of the estimated 
value of the landscaping, as determined by a professional landscaper. 

2.0 Purpose  

This application proposes to restore the heritage house located at 784 Elliot Avenue through the 
mechanism of a Heritage Revitalization Agreement (HRA). The building on the site currently has 
10 existing non-conforming suites. With the HRA, the applicant is proposing to reconfigure the 
interior of the building to construct 6 suites. In phase two of the plan, a building addition to 
contain 3 suites is proposed.  
 
 

19



HRA12-0001 – Page 2 

 
 

3.0 Land Use Management  

The OCP supports the use of Heritage Revitalization Agreements as a means of facilitating the 
adaptive re-use and continuing protection of heritage buildings. The proposal is compatible with 
the City of Kelowna’s Adaptive Re-use Guidelines for Residential Heritage Buildings. The subject 
property is included in the Heritage Register and through the HRA the applicant is seeking to 
formalize the existing non-conforming use.  
 
The proposal seeks to rehabilitate the existing heritage building in two phases.  The first phase 
seeks to bring the building back to a state that meets the life and safety standards of the BC 
Building Code.  Exterior repairs including roof, windows, removing metal decorative features and 
bringing the building back to its original form.  Phase two includes the addition of a front 
verandah and three units in a new building addition to the rear of the site. 
 
The “Heritage Re-adaptive Use Guidelines” are met in the following areas: 

 restoration plans respect the heritage character of the building; 

 removal of the embellishments which have been constructed on and around the building 
to bring the building back to its original form; 

 reduction of the number of residential units within the heritage building;   

 signatures of support were received from neighbours; 

 no other adaptive re-use exists in the neighbourhood; 

 signage is modest in size and is only proposed to identify the building; 

 the proposed addition in phase 2 respects the scale of the existing building and will not be 
visible from the street; 

 no additional screening is proposed. Mature trees located along the east property line 
have been pruned to ensure their longevity and the existing fencing will be repaired.  

 a new Victorian/Edwardian landscape is planned. 
 
The Guidelines are not met in the following areas: 

  parking regulations  
 

In order to facilitate the proposal, the applicant is seeking the following variances within the HRA 
framework: 

Phase 1 

 A reduction in the parking stalls provided from 9 spaces required to 7 spaces proposed. 

Phase 2 

 To reduce the rear yard set back for the proposed addition from 7.5m required to 2.3m 
proposed; 

 To legalize the resulting non-conforming side yard for the existing building to 
accommodate the addition; 

 To reduce the drive aisle width from 7.0m required to 6.0 m proposed; 
 To reduce in the total number of parking spaces provided from 13 spaces required to 10 

spaces provided; 
 To increase the allowable percentage of small parking spaces from 40% to 70% proposed.  

 
The significant extent of the restoration is a positive investment in this heritage asset and the 
variances and phase two addition are a fair trade-off to ensure the longevity of this building. The 
request to legitimize the west side yard from 2.3m to 1.6m stems from the fact that this building 
was constructed prior to current zoning regulations. The parking calculations are based on 
current Zoning Bylaw requirements and as this is a reuse of a residential site with limited access 

20



HRA12-0001 – Page 3 

 
 

and lot size, meeting the requirements is a challenge. Previously, there were more dwelling units 
with less parking spaces provided. Changes proposed to the site plan seek to relocate parking 
access from the front to the rear laneway which is anticipated to have a positive impact on the 
neighbourhood. A variance is sought to the rear and side yard to accommodate the proposed 
addition in phase two of the plan which was supported by the neighbours. Staff welcome the 
quality of the improvements to building and the anticipated impact on the neighbourhood as 
detailed in the explicit rationale.  

4.0 Proposal 

4.1 Background 

The subject property has had a varied past and the building had become debilitated and run 
down. Additional illegal living units were added to the basement and the exterior of the building 
was compromised with extensive metal features. The subject property was purchased by the 
applicant in the Spring of 2012, who immediately sought building permits for essential repairs to 
the building. Photo’s of the original site and subsequent improvements are attached. When 
complete the units will be for rent with the intent of attracting tenants that will appreciate the 
heritage building, the innovative sustainable mechanical upgrades, and the proximity to urban 
centres and active transportation. 

4.2 Project Description 

The project includes the complete restoration of the interior and exterior of the heritage 
building, and the redesign of the landscaping to enhance the unique historical character of the 
property. This will be accomplished by: 

 Removal of the carport;   

 Removal of the metal work attached to the fire escape; 

 Installation of new wrought iron garden fencing; 

 Refurbishment and replacement of soffits and fascia board; 

 Installation of new heritage design wood windows; 

 Repair to and replacement of roofing; 

 Stucco to be sympathetically brushed and cleaned, repaired and painted with 
Historical Collection colours from Benjamin Moore; 

 Updates to lighting fixtures; 

 Restoration of original interior staircase; 

 Update landscaping with a focus on returning to a simple Victorian Garden, with fruit 
trees around perimeter; 

 Incorporating an addition to the rear of the property containing 3 units.  The aim is to 
allow spacious units in keeping with the needs and facilities of the tenants. 

 
The total restoration of Copeland House will be completed in 2 phases.  
 
Phase 1 will predominantly focus on the reversal of decay within the property and has a strong 
interior focus with the exception of the necessary roof and stucco repair, and repainting of the 
building. The plan includes upgrading all internal electrical and plumbing, relocating aerial 
cables underground, reducing the number of units within the building from 12 (10 legal and 2 
illegal) to 6, installing new updated kitchens and bathrooms, and repairing and/or replacing 
hardwood flooring to main areas. These improvements have been underway for a number of 
months with all units in the building vacant.  
 

21



HRA12-0001 – Page 4 

 
 

The installation of garden beds, predominantly herbaceous perennials and roses, will occur. A 
yew hedge will be planted along the south perimeter along the wrought iron fence to provide 
privacy for tenants in the front garden. The border on both sides of the pathway will be planted 
with lavender providing sweet scents when approaching the front entrance. 
 
Phase 2 will be completed within 3 – 5 years, and will encompass restoring the original verandah 
across the front of the building and constructing an addition with three units on the rear of the 
site. The proposed addition is anticipated to emulate the style and character of the original 
building with simple lines and a distinct square form. Replacing the vinyl windows with heritage 
style wood windows is expected to be occur throughout both phases. The garden will be further 
developed as it matures organically into its eventual design. Fencing exists along the east and 
west perimeter and will be upgraded to rod iron. 
 

4.3 Site Context 

The subject property is located on the north side of Elliot Avenue between Richter Street and 
Ethel Street. The neighbourhood is generally characterized by single detached residential 
dwellings however, the building is a legal non-conforming containing 10 apartments. Both the 
Downtown and Capri urban centers are within walking distance of the dwelling.  The adjoining 
neighbourhod zones and uses are: 

 
Direction Zoning Designation Land Use 

North RU6 – Two-Dwelling Housing Residential 

East RU6 – Two-Dwelling Housing Residential 

South RU6 – Two-Dwelling Housing Residential 

West RU6 – Two-Dwelling Housing Residential 

 
4.4  Subject Property:   784 Elliot Avenue 

  
 

22



HRA12-0001 – Page 5 

 
 

4.5 Zoning Analysis 

The proposed application meets the requirements of RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing zone as follows:   

Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 

CRITERIA PROPOSAL RU6 zone requirements 

Subdivision Regulations 

Lot Area 1,055 m2 400 m2 

Lot Width   21.03 m 13 m 

Lot Depth 50 m 30 m 

PHASE ONE 

Development Regulations for existing Heritage Building 

Site Coverage (buildings) 16.5 % 40 % 

Site Coverage (buildings, 
driveway and parking) 

30.5 % 50 % 

Height   13.5m  9.5m / 2 ½ storey 

Front Yard 16.6 m  4.5 m 

Side Yard (west) 1.6 m   2.3 m (2– 2 ½ storey) 

Side Yard (east)  7.5 m 2.3 m ( 2 - 2 ½ storey) 

Rear Yard 18.7 m   7.5m  (2 - 2 ½ storey) 

Other Requirements 

Parking Stalls (#) 

  

Total provided: 7  stalls   

1 x1 bdrm units, 4 x 2 bdrm 
units, and 1 bachelor unit 

 Total required: 9 spaces  

Bicycle parking 

  

Total provided:  7 

Total number of units: 6 
Class I: 0.5 per dwelling unit 

Class II: 0.1 per dwelling unit 

Total required:   4 

PHASE TWO 

Development Regulations for proposed Addition (inclusive of Phase 1) 

Site Coverage (buildings)  27.5 % 40 % 

Site Coverage (buildings, 
driveway and parking) 

46.5 % 50 % 

Height  9.2m   9.5m / 2 ½ storey 

Side Yard (west) 2.4 m  2.3 m (2 - 2 ½ storey) 

Side Yard (east)   11 m 2.3m (2 - 2 ½ storey) 

Rear Yard 2.3 m  7.5m  (2 - 2 ½ storey) 

23



HRA12-0001 – Page 6 

 
 

PHASE TWO 

Development Regulations for proposed Addition  

Other Requirements 

Parking Stalls (#) 

  

Total provided: 10 stalls  

1 bdrm units: 4 

2 bdrm units :4 

Bachelor unit: 1 

  Total required: 13 stalls  

Bicycle parking 

 

Total provided: 7 

Total number of units: 9 

Class I: 0.5 per dwelling unit 

Class II: 0.1 per dwelling unit 

Total required: 6    

Signage    Meets requirements 
Non-illuminated nameplate 

not exceeding 2.5 sq.ft. 

  Variance granted in May 2009 for height of building with widows walk. 
  Legal non-conforming side yard set back. 

Variances Sought: 

 To reduce the rear yard set back for the proposed addition from 7.5m required to 2.3m 
provided. 

 &  A reduction in the required parking is sought for both Phase 1 and Phase 2 of the project.   
 
4.6 Heritage Register 

 
Character defining elements: 
 
The accompanying documents provide a good history of the building. Copeland House was a 
family home to the original builder Robert Andrew Copeland, and his wife Jane, who for 10 years, 
resided in this traditional Foursquare House. Acting as a Director of the Central Okanagan Land 
Company and an Alderman of Kelowna from 1911 to 1916, Robert Copeland had previously been 
an Hotelier in Saskatchewan for 20 years.  
 
Ironically, 100 years later, the applicants have taken over the building who have been Hoteliers 
for over 20 years. When Bob Copeland moved to Lumby to buy a farm he sold the property to his 
brother and his wife who raised 14 children in the home. In 1941 Copeland House changed from 
being a Single Family Home to a rooming house, and became multi family lodging in 1942 when it 
was redesigned to provide 8 apartments.  
 
With respect to Robert Andrew Copeland, and his commitment to Kelowna in those early days as 
the city became incorporated, Copeland Place was named after him. 767 Copeland Place was the 
original barn for Copeland House, and 789 Copeland Place was the ice house.  
 
To honour his achievements the applicant is returning the house back to its original name of 
“Copeland House”, and the restored Heritage Apartment Building will be known as “Copeland 
House Heritage Apartments”. 

 

24



HRA12-0001 – Page 7 

 
 

5.0 CURRENT DEVELOPMENT POLICY 

5.1  Heritage Policies1 

Objective 9.2 Identify and conserve heritage resources. No character guidelines exist for this 
property as it is located outside of the conservation areas and unique as a four square 
architectural style.  
 
5.2  Heritage Conservation Area - Objectives: 2 

•  Encourage new development, additions and renovations to existing development which are 
    compatible with the form and character of the existing context; 
•  Ensure that change to buildings and streetscapes will be undertaken in ways which offer 
    continuity of the ‘sense-of-place’ for neighbours, the broader community; and 
•  Provide historical interest for visitors through context sensitive development. 

5.3 Adaptive Re-use Guidelines 
 

After consideration has been given to location, each adaptive re-use proposal must be assessed 
on its own merits as to whether the proposal would be appropriate within the context of the 
heritage building, the surrounding neighbourhood and adjacent property characteristics. In this 
regard, the following factors should be considered: 

 
5.3.1 Neighbourhood Resident Concerns 

The concerns of neighbouring property owners should be considered. Identifying 
and, wherever possible, resolving these issues when developing the terms and 
conditions specific to an application is important. Applicants are encouraged to 
discuss their proposed adaptive reuse with neighbouring property owners.  
Signatures of support from the surrounding neighbourhood have be supplied.  
 

5.3.2 Residential Component 

A residential component (secondary suite, principal dwelling, etc.) should be 
provided in conjunction with a non-residential use in order to minimize impacts on 
the residential character of a neighbourhood. For security purposes, incorporating 
a residential component is particularly important where a high concentration of 
adaptive re-uses occurs along a particular block. The whole project is residential 
and no commercial or other uses are being considered. 
 

5.3.3 Concentration of Adaptive Re-Uses 
Careful consideration must be given to avoid a concentration of adaptive re-uses in 
any given area. In this regard, consideration should be given to maintaining the 
existing neighbourhood character. In addition, consideration should be given to 
whether or not permitting an adaptive re-use or a concentration of adaptive re-
uses would limit the ability to redevelop the area to higher density uses supported 
in the OCP.  The adaptive re-use is the reconfiguration of the interior units and 
the addition to the rear of the building in phase two.  

 
 
 

                                                
1 City of Kelowna, Official Community Plan, Chapter  9; Objective 9.2  Policy .4 
2 City of Kelowna, Official Community Plan, Chapter 16 

25



HRA12-0001 – Page 8 

 
 

5.3.4 Design Standards 

Any heritage building restorations, renovations or alterations must respect the 
heritage character of the building and its surrounding area. As provided in the 
accompanying documentation the intent of the proposal is to be sustainable and 
return the building back to its original simple form. The proposed addition for 
phase two has been kept simple in its form and massing to align with the original 
four square design.  Elements such as the windows, railing from the widows walk, 
and roof detailing are reflected in the new additional.  
 

5.3.5 Scale 

The size and intensity of the adaptive re-use component should be compatible 
with the surrounding neighbourhood and able to be readily accommodated within 
an existing heritage building. The requirements of a specific use, and the available 
floor area in the existing building, will limit the extent and nature of the adaptive 
re-use proposal. It is recommended that the number of employees not exceed four 
non-resident employees at any given time for adaptive re-uses along major roads 
and two non-resident employees at any given time for adaptive re-uses along local 
roads. In addition to this, it is recommended that, as a guideline, the non-
residential floor area not exceed 85 m2 (915 sq. ft.) for adaptive re-uses along 
major roads and 60 m2 (645 sq. ft.) for adaptive re-uses along local roads. Given 
that the building has been used as a 10 unit apartment, the proposal to update 
and reconfigure the interior dwellings and to reduce the overall number of units 
on the property to 9 is well within the scale of the original density.  

 
5.3.6 Signage 

Signage should be limited to one non-illuminated nameplate not to exceed 2.5 
square feet in area and shall be placed within, flat against or hanging from the 
dwelling unit. Along major roads, signs of this size and dimension may be hung 
from a free standing post. Signage is proposed for identification purposes only. 

 
5.3.7 Parking / Access 

Consideration must be given to on-site parking, access and traffic generation 
associated with adaptive re-use proposals. In order to limit the impact on adjacent 
properties, the required number of on-site parking spaces should conform to the 
Parking Schedule of the Zoning Bylaw. Access to parking is being relocated off the 
alley to the north of the site. The number of required parking stall is being varied 
to allow only one stall per suite.  It is expected that the central location of the 
site will allow for alternative modes of transportation and less reliance on the 
automobile. Incidentally, the site originally provided more units and less parking 
than is being proposed. 
 

5.3.8 Hours of Operation 

No generation of vehicular traffic or parking of vehicles in excess of that permitted 
for the zone in which the adaptive re-use is located should be permitted during 
non-regular working hours. Generally, working hours should be limited to daytime 
hours, Monday through Friday.  Non-applicable given that the entire building is 
remaining residential. 

 

26



HRA12-0001 – Page 9 

 
 

5.3.9 Screening 

Screening helps lessen the impact of an adaptive re-use in a residential area. In 
this regard, outdoor storage and parking areas associated with an adaptive re-use 
should be well screened with fencing and landscaping which are compatible in 
design with the heritage building and which form a year round dense screen.  No 
screening is proposed with the exception of the fencing and mature trees found 
on the site.  
 

6.0  Technical Comments   

6.1 Building & Permitting Department 

 No comment for phase 1.  

 Drawings are required for the phase 2 prior to comment (new building). No comments 
were provided with the exception of the need for a full plan check review when revised 
drawings were submitted. 

6.2 Development Engineering Department 

See attached.  

6.2 Fire Department 

No concerns. 

6.3 Interior Health Authority 

The RCMP have no comments related to this application. 

7.0 Application Chronology  

Date of Application Received: December 18, 2012 
Application Refinement:  March 1, 2013 

7.1   Community Heritage Commission   

The above noted application was reviewed by the Community Heritage Commission at the 
meeting on January 10, 2013 and the following recommendations were passed: 

THAT the Community Heritage Committee supports the proposal under the Heritage 
Revitalization Agreement HRA12-0001 including variances, for 784 Elliot Avenue; 

AND THAT further consideration be given to restoring the verandah to an increased width 
from the front elevation so as to visually better represent the original condition; 

AND FURTHER THAT consideration also be given to modifying the roof access structure to 
lessen its visual impact on the widow's walk. 

ANECTODAL COMMENT:  

CHC recognized that what is now the front of the building was originally the back of the 
building and that there is an exchange of authenticity for restoration of architectural 
character.   

 

27



HRA12-0001 – Page 10 

 
 

Report prepared by: 

     
Birte Decloux, Land Use Planner  
 
 

Reviewed by:    Danielle Noble, Manager, Urban Land Use 
 

Approved for Inclusion:  Doug Gilchrist, Acting General Manager, Community 
Sustainability  

 
  

Attachments:  

Historic photos 
Neighbourhood context 
Existing building conditions 
Existing Site Plan 
Elevations - Phase 1  
Interior floor plans – Phase 1 
Photographic refurbishment plan 
Landscape plan – Phase 1 
Colour board 
Site Plan – Phase 2 
Elevations – Phase 2 
Colour Rendering – Phase 2 
Landscape Plan – Phase 2 
Rationale  
Statement of Significance 
 

28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: April 12, 2013 

RIM No. 0940-40 

To: City Manager 

From: Land Use Management, Community Sustainability (BD) 

Application: DP13-0013 Owner: 
Lipkovits Holdings Ltd., Inc. 
No. BC0464466 

Address: 320 Nickel Road Applicant: Al Lipkovits 

Subject: Development Permit  

Existing OCP Designation: Multiple Unit Residential (Low Density) 

Existing Zone: RM4 – Transitional Low Density Housing 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT The Council authorizes the issuance of Development Permit No. DP13-0013 for Lot 7, 
Section 27, township 26, ODYD Plan 8839 located at 320 Nickel Road, Kelowna B.C., subject to 
the following: 
 
1) The dimensions and siting of the building to be constructed on the land be in general  
           accordance with Schedule "A"; 
 
2) The exterior design and finish of the building to be constructed on the land be in general 
           accordance with Schedule “B”; 
 
3) Landscaping to be provided on the land be in general accordance with Schedule "C"; 
 
4) The applicant be required to post with the City, a Landscape Performance Security  
           deposit in the form of a “Letter of Credit” in the amount of 125% of the estimated value 
           of the landscaping, as determined by a professional landscaper; 
 
5)        That the Development Engineering and Black Mountain Irrigation District requirements 
           must be completed prior to the issuance of a Building Permit. 
 
AND FURTHER THAT the applicant be required to complete the above noted conditions within 180 
days of Council’s approval of the Development Permit Application in order for the permit to be 
issued. 
 
 

97



DP13-0013 – Page 2 

 
 

 

2.0 Purpose  

To consider a Development Permit for a 6 unit multi- residential development.  
 

3.0 Land Use Management  

The proposal is seen to meet the objectives and supporting policies of the Official Community 
Plan (OCP), as well as the applicable comprehensive design guidelines. The design incorporates 
many desired elements including visual interest, authentic expression, good architectural 
features and siting that respects the established neighbourhood rhythm. The subject property is 
located at the end of the Houghton Road multi-modal corridor close to many amenities, making it 
well suited for a townhouse form of development. The massing and scale of the development 
provides an appropriate transition from the existing multi-family units to the west and the single 
family dwellings to the east.  

The building design is traditionally inspired featuring: 

 horizontal siding,  

 multiple roof pitches,  

 good articulation,  

 and shingle details in the eves. 

The majority of the units are accessed from the interior of the parcel allowing the on-site 
movements to be coordinated for functionality, and the road frontage incorporates a pedestrian 
friendly interface. Site landscaping uses drought tolerant vegetation and standard turf which 
complements the building design. 

4.0 Proposal 

4.1  Project Description 

A single family dwelling is located on the subject property which is zoned for multiple residential 
developments. The applicant recently purchased the site, and plans to demolish the existing 
building and construct six unit multi-residential townhomes. The site has some constraints as it is 
long and narrow. The plan shows a single drive aisle entering the site from the south. The 
building as viewed from the street shows the narrow portion of a unit. This elevation is inviting 
and pedestrian friendly with a well emphasized entrance, multiple roof peaks and building 
articulation creating an interesting facade. 

The other 5 units are accessed from the site’s interior and feature a single car garage with a 
recessed entry door. The proposed garage door detailing add to the interior façade and increase 
the overall appeal of the elevation. The individual four bedroom townhomes are expected to fill 
the need for family housing in the area. Private outdoor patios and personalized garden areas are 
located outside of French doors of each unit, in addition to the grassed common space. 

The colour palette proposed is a combination of taupe and slate tones in a Gentek siding.  The 
landscape plan includes blossoming trees on the road frontage, plantings around the electrical 
box and small vegetated beds along the building. A natural wooden slatted fence is proposed for 
the non-street sides of the site. The driveway dominates the south side of the site with 
pavement, however small green spaces are provided in front of each unit.   

 

 

98



DP13-0013 – Page 3 

 
 

 

4.2 Site Context 

The subject property is located at the end of the Houghton Road Multi-modal corridor nested half 
way between the Rutland and Midtown urban centers.  It is in close proximity to various 
amenities including Ben Lee Park and the new Rutland transit exchange. 

 

Specifically, adjacent land uses are as follows: 

Orientation Zoning Land Use 

North RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing Single Family residences 

East RU1 – Large Lot Housing Single Family dwellings 

South RU1– Large Lot Housing Single Family dwellings 

West RM3 – Low Density Multiple Housing Two storey multiple family residential 

 

4.3  Subject Property Map: 320 Nickel Road 
  

 
 

4.4  Zoning Table  

The project compares to Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 as follows: 

Zoning Analysis Table 

CRITERIA RM4 ZONE REQUIREMENTS PROPOSAL 

Existing Lot/Subdivision Regulations 
Lot Area 900 m2 1809 m2 

Lot Width 30 m 31.7 m 

Lot Depth 30 m 57.15 m 

Development Regulations 
Floor Area Ratio 0.65    0.65  

Number of units N/A 6 units 

Site Coverage – Buildings 50% 
Building foot print: 545.2 m2  

30%   

Site Coverage – Buildings and 
impermeable surfaces 

60%  56%  

Height 13 m or 3 storeys 8.62 m / 2 storeys 

99



DP13-0013 – Page 4 

 
 

 

Front Yard 
6.0 m except that it is 4.5m for 

any portion 2 storeys or less 
4.5 m 

Side Yard (south)  2.3 m (for 2 storeys or less)  4.6m  

Side Yard (north) 2.3 m (for 2 storeys or less) 12.5 m 

Rear Yard 7.5 m (for 2 storeys or less) 8.6 m 

Other Regulations 

Minimum Parking Requirements 
2 per 3 or more bedroom units 

6 – 3 bedroom units: 
Total required 12 spaces 

6 provided within the single  vehicle 
garages with 1 per unit in front of the 

garage 

Total: 12 spaces 

Bicycle Parking 

For row houses with 3 or more 
units: 

Class 1: 0.5 per dwelling unit 
Class 2: 0.1 per dwelling unit 

Total required: 4 

 Rack for a minimum of 4 
bicycles provided 

Other Regulations 

Private Open Space 
25m2 for any dwelling with 

more than 1 bedroom 

  meet requirements 
with the majority of the space 
provided with a private patio   

Building frontage 
No continuous building 

frontage shall exceed 65m for 
a 2 storey building 

14.7m building frontage 

 
Unit breakdown: 2 @ Unit A (191m2 each) = 382 m2 

4 @ Unit B (197m2 each) = 788 m2 

5.0  Current Development Policies   

5.1 Kelowna Official Community Plan (OCP) 

Development Process 

Compact Urban Form.1 Develop a compact urban form that maximizes the use of existing 
infrastructure and contributes to energy efficient settlement patterns. This will be done by 
increasing densities (approximately 75 - 100 people and/or jobs located within a 400 metre 
walking distance of transit stops is required to support the level of transit service) through 
development, conversion, and re-development within Urban Centres (see Map 5.3) in particular 
and existing areas as per the provisions of the Generalized Future Land Use Map 4.1. 

Policy 5.23.1 - Ground-Oriented Housing.2 Encourage all multi-unit residential buildings in 
neighbourhoods with schools and parks to contain ground-oriented units with 2 or more bedrooms 
to provide a family housing choice within multi-unit rental or ownership markets. High density 
residential projects in the Downtown area are encouraged to include a ground-oriented housing 
component, especially where such can be provided on non-arterial and non-collector streets.’ 

Comprehensive Development Permit Objectives:3 

 Convey a strong sense of authenticity through urban design that is distinctive for Kelowna; 

 Promote a high urban design standard and quality of construction for future development that 
is coordinated with existing structures; 

                                                
1 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.2.3 (Development Process Chapter). 
2
 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Development Process 

3 OCP, Chapter 14 – DP guidelines 

100



DP13-0013 – Page 5 

 
 

 

 Integrate new development with existing site conditions and preserve the character amenities 
of the surrounding area; 

 Promote interesting, pedestrian friendly streetscape design and pedestrian linkages; 

 Incorporate architectural features and detailing of buildings and landscapes that define an 
area’s character; 

 Mitigate the actual and perceived bulk of buildings by utilizing appropriate massing including 
architectural elements, visually-interesting rooflines, wall projections and indentations; 

 Incorporate decks, balconies, and common outdoor amenity spaces into developments; 

 Incorporate landscaping that adds texture and three dimensional components to the site. 

6.0 Technical Comments  

6.1 Building & Permitting Department 

1) Demolition Permits required for any structures prior to them being taken down. 

2) Development Cost Charges (DCC’s) are required to be paid prior to issuance of any 
Building Permit(s) for new construction 

3) This property falls beside the Mill Creek flood plain bylaw area and compliance within 
the area is required. The Developer should be made aware of the minimum building 
elevations on the neighbouring property since it may affect his development in the future 
since this proposal has a basement. This building may be designed to low, which may 
affect the form and character of the building at this area is redeveloped.  

4) A code analysis is required for the structure at time of building permit applications.  

5) Full Plan check for Building Code related issues will be done at time of Building Permit 
applications. 

6.2 Development Engineering Department 

See attached. 

6.3 Black Mountain Irrigation District 

See attached. 

6.4 Fire Department 

Fire department access, fire flows, and hydrants as per the BC Building Code and City of 
Kelowna Subdivision Bylaw #7900. The Subdivision Bylaw requires a minimum of 150ltr/sec 
flow for row housing. The access road is to be a minimum of 6M in width with no parking 
signs provided along the roadway. Additional comments will be required at the building 
permit applications.  

6.5 Ministry of Transportation infrastructure 

This Ministry has no objection to the above-noted application. 
 
 

101



DP13-0013 – Page 6 

 
 

 

 
 
 

7.0 Application Chronology   

Date of Application Received: January 16, 2013  
Application Refinement:  April 16, 2013  

Report prepared by: 

     
Birte Decloux, Urban Land Use Planner  
 
 

Reviewed by:    Danielle Noble, Manager, Urban Land Use 
 

Approved for Inclusion:  Doug Gilchrist, Acting General Manager, Community 
Sustainability  

 

Attachments:   

Site Plan 
Conceptual Elevations 
Landscape Plan 
Context/Site Photos 
Sustainability Checklist 
Summary of Technical Comments 

102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: March 26, 2013 

RIM No. 1250-30 

To: City Manager 

From: Land Use Management, Community Sustainability (BD) 

Application: Z10-0044 Owner: Nathan Morden 

Address: 120 Homer Road Applicant: Nathan Morden 

Subject: Rezoning Application, Extension Request 

Existing Zone: RU1 – Large Lot Housing 

Proposed Zone: RM1 – Four Dwelling Housing 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT in accordance with Development Application Procedures Bylaw No. 10540, the deadline for 
the adoption of Amending Bylaw No. 10403 (Z10-0044) to amend the City of Kelowna Zoning 
Bylaw No. 8000 by changing the zoning classification of Lot 13 Section 27 Township 26 ODYD Plan 
14897, except Plan 39705, located at 120 Homer Road, Kelowna BC, be extended from March 21, 
2013 to March 21, 2014. 

2.0 Purpose  

To extend the deadline for adoption of the Zone Amending Bylaw from March 21, 2013 to March 
21, 2014. 

3.0 Land Use Management  

Section 2.12.1 of Procedure Bylaw No. 10540 states that: 

In the event that an application made pursuant to this bylaw is one (1) year old or older and has 
been inactive for a period of six (6) months or greater: 
 

a) The application will be deemed to be abandoned and the applicant will be notified in writing 
that the file will be closed; 

b) Any bylaw that has not received final adoption will be of no force and effect; 

c) In the case of an amendment application, the City Clerk will place on the agenda of a meeting 
of Council a motion to rescind all readings of the bylaw associated with that Amendment 
application. 
 

122



Z10-0044 – Page 2 

 
 

Section 2.12.2 of the Procedure Bylaw makes provision that upon written request by the 
applicant prior to the lapse of the application, Council may extend the deadline for a period of 
twelve (12) months by passing a resolution to that affect. 
  
By-Law No. 10403 received second and third readings on September 21, 2010 after the Public 
Hearing held on the same date. The applicant wishes to have this application remain open for an 
additional twelve (12) months in order to from the current deadline to allow for more time to 
finance the outstanding requirements, including Development Engineering and Building & 
Permitting.  This project remains unchanged and is the same in all respects as originally applied 
for. 
 
In our report dated October 5, 2012, the Land Use Management Department noted we would not 
support any further extension requests as this application was originally generated through a 
Bylaw Enforcement action and prolonged non-compliance would not be permitted.  However, the 
applicant has since begun to pay the required fees in order to move the application forward, and 
the Land Use Management Department is agreeable to one last extension for a further twelve 
(12) months. 
 
The Land Use Management Department recommends Council consider the request for an 
extension favourably. 

Report prepared by: 

     
Birte Decloux, Land Use Planner  
/hb 
 

Reviewed by:    Danielle Noble, Manager, Urban Land Use 
      
 

Approved for Inclusion  Doug Gilchrist, Acting General Manager, Community  
     Sustainability 
 

Attachments:  

Site Plan 

123



124



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: April 17, 2013 

RIM No. 1250-30 

To: City Manager 

From: Land Use Management, Community Sustainability (AW) 

Application: Z10-0104 Owner: Eric & Margaret Nickel 

Address: 1205, 1215, 1223, 1229 Richter St Applicant: Garry Tomporowski Arch. 

Subject: Rezoning Application, Extension Request 

Existing Zone: RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing 

Proposed Zone: RM5 - Medium Density Multiple Housing 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT in accordance with Development Application Procedures Bylaw No. 10540, the deadline for 
the adoption of Amending Bylaw No. 10544 (Z10-0104), Lots 10-13 District Lot 138 ODYD Plan 
1039, located on Richter Street, Kelowna, BC, be extended from March 7, 2013 to March 7, 2014. 

2.0 Purpose  

To extend the deadline for adoption of the Zone Amending Bylaw from March 7, 2013 to March 7, 
2014. 

3.0 Land Use Management  

Section 2.12.1 of Procedure Bylaw No. 10540 states that: 

In the event that an application made pursuant to this bylaw is one (1) year old or older and has 
been inactive for a period of six (6) months or greater: 
 

a) The application will be deemed to be abandoned and the applicant will be notified in writing 
that the file will be closed; 

b) Any bylaw that has not received final adoption will be of no force and effect; 

c) In the case of an amendment application, the City Clerk will place on the agenda of a meeting 
of Council a motion to rescind all readings of the bylaw associated with that Amendment 
application. 
 

125



Z10-0104 – Page 2 

 
 

Section 2.12.2 of the Procedure Bylaw makes provision that upon written request by the 
applicant prior to the lapse of the application, Council may extend the deadline for a period of 
twelve (12) months by passing a resolution to that affect. 
  
By-Law No. 10544 received second and third readings on June 1, 2011 after the Public Hearing 
held on the same date. The applicant wishes to have this application remain open for an 
additional twelve (12) months in order to address the outstanding conditions of final adoption.  
This project remains unchanged and is the same in all respects as originally applied for. 
 
The Land Use Management Department recommends Council consider the request for an 
extension favourably. 

Report prepared by: 

      
Alec Warrender, Land Use Planner  
/hb 
 

Reviewed by:    Danielle Noble, Manager, Urban Land Use 
      
 

Approved for Inclusion  Doug Gilchrist, Acting General Manager, Community  
     Sustainability 
 

Attachments:  

Site Plan 

126



127



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: April 9, 2013 

RIM No. 1250-30 

To: City Manager 

From: Land Use Management, Community Sustainability (AW) 

Application: Z10-0096 Owner: 
0831627 B.C. Ltd., Inc., No. 
0831627 

Address: 540 Osprey Avenue Applicant: 
Pezzenti Holdings (A. 
Pezzenti) 

Subject: Rezoning Application, Extension Request 

Existing Zone: RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing 

Proposed Zone: C4 – Urban Centre Commercial 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT in accordance with Development Application Procedures Bylaw No. 10540, the deadline for 
the adoption of Amending Bylaw No. 10482 (Z10-0096) for Lot A, DL 14, ODYD, Plan EPP14200, 
located at 540 Osprey Avenue Kelowna, BC be extended from March 8, 2013 to March 8, 2014. 

2.0 Purpose   

To extend the deadline for adoption of the Zone Amending Bylaw from March 8, 2013 to March 8, 
2014. 

3.0 Land Use Management  

Section 2.12.1 of Procedure Bylaw No. 10540 states that: 

In the event that an application made pursuant to this bylaw is one (1) year old or older and has 
been inactive for a period of six (6) months or greater: 
 

a) The application will be deemed to be abandoned and the applicant will be notified in writing 
that the file will be closed; 

b) Any bylaw that has not received final adoption will be of no force and effect; 

c) In the case of an amendment application, the City Clerk will place on the agenda of a meeting 
of Council a motion to rescind all readings of the bylaw associated with that Amendment 
application. 
 

128



Z10-0096– Page 2 
 

 
Section 2.12.2 of the Procedure Bylaw makes provision that upon written request by the 
applicant prior to the lapse of the application, Council may extend the deadline for a period of 
twelve (12) months by passing a resolution to that affect. 
  
By-Law No.10482 received second and third readings on March 8, 2011 after the Public Hearing 
held on the same date. The applicant wishes to have this application remain open for an 
additional twelve (12) months as the property is now under new ownership and the new owner 
requires additional time to address the technical requirements associated with the project. 
 
The Land Use Management Department recommends Council consider the request for an 
extension favourably. 

Report prepared by: 

      
Alec Warrender, Land Use Planner  
/hb 
 

Reviewed by:    Danielle Noble, Manager, Urban Land Use 
 

Approved for Inclusion  Doug Gilchrist, Acting GM, Community Sustainability 
 

Attachments:  

Subject Property 

129



130



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: April 1, 2013 

RIM No. 1250-30 

To: City Manager 

From: Land Use Management, Community Sustainability (AW) 

Application: OCP08-0011 / Z07-0079 Owner: Kathleen (Kimble) Mooney 

Address: 526 Hawes Court Applicant: Kathleen (Kimble) Mooney 

Subject: Rezoning Application, Extension Request 

Existing Zone: RR1 – Rural Residential 1 

Proposed Zone: RU1hs – Large Lot Housing (Hillside Area) with Secondary Suite &  
RU2h Medium Lot Housing (Hillside Area) 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT in accordance with Development Application Procedures Bylaw No. 10540, the deadline for 
the adoption of Amending Bylaw Nos. 10389 (OCP08-0011) and 10390 (Z07-0079) for Lot 2 Section 
24 Township 28 SDYD, Plan 33972 Except Plan 35765, EPP25048 and EPP23906 for 526 Hawes 
Court, be extended from February 24, 2013 to February 24, 2014. 

2.0 Purpose  

To extend the deadline for adoption of the OCP and Zone Amending Bylaws from February 24, 
2013 to February 24, 2014. 

3.0 Land Use Management  

Section 2.12.1 of Procedure Bylaw No. 10540 states that: 

In the event that an application made pursuant to this bylaw is one (1) year old or older and has 
been inactive for a period of six (6) months or greater: 
 

a) The application will be deemed to be abandoned and the applicant will be notified in writing 
that the file will be closed; 

b) Any bylaw that has not received final adoption will be of no force and effect; 

c) In the case of an amendment application, the City Clerk will place on the agenda of a meeting 
of Council a motion to rescind all readings of the bylaw associated with that Amendment 
application. 
 

131



OCP08-0011 / Z07-0079 – Page 2 

 
 

Section 2.12.2 of the Procedure Bylaw makes provision that upon written request by the 
applicant prior to the lapse of the application, Council may extend the deadline for a period of 
twelve (12) months by passing a resolution to that affect. 
  
By-Law Nos. 10389 and No. 10390 received second and third readings on August 24, 2010, after 
the Public Hearing held on the same date. The applicant wishes to have this application remain 
open for an additional twelve (12) months in order to address the technical requirements 
associated with the proposal.  This project remains unchanged and is the same in all respects as 
originally applied for. Staff will be hesitant to support any future extensions unless the file is 
moving forward. 
 
The Land Use Management Department recommends Council consider the request for an 
extension favourably. 

Report prepared by: 

      
Alec Warrender, Land Use Planner  
/hb 
 

Reviewed by:    Danielle Noble, Manager, Urban Land Use 
      
 

Approved for Inclusion  Doug Gilchrist, Acting General Manager, Community  
     Sustainability 
 

Attachments:  

Site Plan 

132



133



Report to Council 
 
 
Date: 

 
April 11, 2013  
 

Rim No. 
 

0155-30 

To:  
 

City Manager 
 

From: 
 

Jerry Dombowsky, Regional Programs Manager 

Subject: 
 

Okanagan Car Share Co-Op Parking Spaces  

 Report Prepared by: Michelle Kam, Sustainability Coordinator  

 

Recommendation: 
 
That Council authorizes two (2) parking spaces at no charge from May 15, 2013 to May 15, 
2014 at the City’s Memorial Arena lot for the Okanagan Car Share Co-op as identified in 
Appendix “A” to the report of the Regional Programs Manager dated April 11, 2013. 
 
AND That Council authorizes one (1) parking space at no charge from May 15, 2013 to May 15, 
2014 at the City’s Osprey lot for the Okanagan Car Share Co-op as identified in Appendix “B” 
to the report of the Regional Programs Manager dated April 11, 2013.  
 
Purpose:  
To allow the use of three City owned parking spaces at no charge by Okanagan Car Share  
Co-op for a period of one year.  
 
Background: 
 
The Okanagan Car Share Co-op (OGO) is launching their car share on May 2nd, 2013 with two 
vehicles, one located downtown and one in South Pandosy.  The OGO plans to add a third 
vehicle to their fleet by fall 2013.  The OGO is requesting that the City provide three parking 
spaces in convenient locations close to transit for one year.  City staff recommends that the 
City provide two spaces at the City’s Memorial Arena lot (downtown, Appendix “A”) and one 
space at the City’s Osprey lot (South Pandosy, Appendix “B”).   
 
The City previously supported the OGO by acting as a one-time funding conduit between the 
Enterprising Non Profits Organization and the Okanagan Car Share Co-op (Council Memo, 
September 11, 2012).   
 
The OGO is a not for profit group establishing a car share in the Okanagan.  The Car Share has 
received $17,366 grant from Interior Savings to help acquire the first two vehicles.  The Car 
Share has established a roaming agreement with Modo (Vancouver’s carshare co-op) that 
enables OGO members to have access to Modo's carshare fleet when members are in 
Vancouver.   Furthermore, the OGO established a partnership with the BC SCRAP-IT program 
where members are able to receive a $750 driving credit with OGO when they scrap their 

134



2000 or older vehicle.  Additional information can be found in the FAQs in Appendix C and at 
www.ogocarshare.ca        
 
Through car sharing, residents, businesses, local governments and academic institutions can 
gain the benefits of vehicle use without the costs and responsibilities associated with vehicle 
ownership.  A car share program fits with the implementation of the Community Climate 
Action Plan which has a goal to reduce community greenhouse gas emissions 33% below 2007 
levels by 2020. 
 
Internal Circulation: 
Acting Director, Real Estate and Building Services 
Parking Operations Coordinator 
Sustainability Coordinator 
 
Existing Policy: 
Official Community Plan, Objective 6.2.1:  Improve energy efficiency and reduce community 
greenhouse gas emissions.  
 
Official Community Plan, Objective 7.11:  Implement parking management programs that 
promote reduced car ownership, reduced car trips and increased use of active modes of 
transportation.   
 
Community Climate Action Plan, Right Sizing Vehicle Action: Support the formation of 
Cooperative Auto Networks (car/truck share). 
 
The Downtown Parking Management Plan supports the use of car sharing as an option to 
reduce overall demand for parking spaces.  Car sharing reduces the need to add more parking 
capacity, as multiple users can access the same vehicle thus reducing demand for extra 
spaces. 
 
 
Financial/Budgetary Considerations: 
A monthly pass at the Memorial Arena lot is $46.44 per month.  Therefore, two parking spaces 
for one year would cost $1,114.56.  However, the Okanagan Car Share will launch with only 
two vehicles (one at each location) and therefore this cost would be reduced as they will not 
utilize the second downtown space for an entire year. While the space at the Memorial Arena 
lot will be reserved for this use, the revenue loss is only a potential one, as there is other City 
owned space (Library parkade, Doyle and Ellis) that has available space to accommodate any 
displaced parkers – so the revenue may not really be lost. 
 
There will be no financial loss for the parking stall in the Osprey lot as this is currently a free 
“unregulated” lot.  While this lot is well used, the loss of one stall will have minimal impact.   
 
 
Considerations not applicable to this report: 
Legal/Statutory Authority: 
Legal/Statutory Procedural Requirements: 
Personnel Implications: 
External Agency/Public Comments: 
Communications Comments: 

135



Alternate Recommendation: 
 
 
Submitted by:  
 
J. Dombowsky, Regional Programs Manager 
 
 
Approved for inclusion:               R. Westlake, Director Regional Services 
 
 
cc:  
Acting Director, Real Estate and Building Services 
Parking Operations Coordinator 
Sustainability Coordinator 
 
Attachments: 
Appendix “A” Map of parking spaces at City’s Memorial Arena Lot  
Appendix “B” Map of parking spaces at City’s Osprey Lot  
Appendix “C” Okanagan Car Share Co-op FAQ’s 

  

136



1435

1460

1465

1451

1475

1447

1435-1441

1453-1457

1443-1445

471

1425-1431

EL
LIS

 ST

QUEENSWAY

EL
LIS

 ST

Appendix A
Okanagan Car Share
Co-op Parking Spaces

Date: 4/15/2013

¯

0 5 102.5
Metres

137



565

2689

547

546

561

540

518

519

560-580

583

2695

2606-2696

MCKAY AVE

OSPREY AVE

PA
ND

OS
Y S

T
PA

ND
OS

Y S
T

Appendix B
Okanagan Car Share
Co-op Parking Spaces

Date: 4/4/2013
0 105

Metres

¯

138



Report to Council 
 

 

Date: 

 
April 22, 2013 
 

File: 
 

1510-80 

To:  
 

City Manager                                                 

From: 
 

Kevin Van Vliet, Manager Utility and Building Projects 

Subject: 
 

Library Parkade Expansion, Ellis Parkade Project Update 

  

 

Recommendation: 
 
THAT Council receives, for information, the report from the Manager Utility and Building 
Projects dated April 22, 2013 with respect to the Library Parkade expansion and the Ellis 
Parkade projects; 
 
Purpose:  
 
To provide Council with an update on scope and funding requirements of the downtown 
parkade projects. 
 
Background: 
As part of the City’s agreement with Interior Health (IH) for the downtown revitalization 

project, the City will construct  410 additional parking stalls to be used by IH during regular 

business hours.  These parking stalls will be available for public parking on evenings and 

weekends.   

This parking will be accomplished through the design and construction of a new parkade on 

Ellis Street, between the Okanagan Heritage Museum and the Military Museum / Memorial 

Arena (the “Ellis Parkade”).   

In addition, the City will also expand the Library Parkade toward Ellis St. (the “Library 

Parkade”) in order to replace many of the current surface parking stalls which will be lost at 

the IH building site and the new Ellis Parkade building site. 

During negotiations on this project a preliminary estimate of the parkade construction costs 

was completed, with the understanding that there could be substantive variability as staff 

proceeded to detailed design.    

139



Design and Construction Services have now completed a Schematic Design with updated cost 

estimates for both sites. The results show a 12% overall increase over the original estimate. 

The current cost estimates are: 

  

Estimated 
Project Costs  

Original 
Budget Shortfall 

 

Library Expansion $6,476,000 $4,075,000 $2,401,000 
   

 

Ellis Parkade.  $14,864,000 $14,925,000 ($61,000) 
   

 

Project Total $21,340,000 $19,000,000 $2,340,000 
   

 

The main discrepancies between the original and current cost estimates are a result of 

unanticipated geotechnical remediation requirements and the inclusion of expanded ground 

level retail at the Library Parkade expansion site. 

To ensure a high quality urban environment, significant ground level retail space will be 

designed into the library parkade on both Smith and Ellis Streets.  This retail space works 

toward making the street a more pedestrian friendly space and contributes to enhancing the 

commercial / retail viability of Ellis Street near Doyle Avenue.  The proposed design has more 

than the required minimum retail space incorporated to ensure that the space is 

commercially viable for the long term. 

Ground level active uses must also be designed into the Ellis Parkade. This space will be used 

for a municipal purpose as City office space.  The Bruckal building which houses City office 

space will be demolished to allow for redevelopment of the Central Green lands. The current 

Ellis Parkade schematic design also includes approximately 22 stalls to be used by the 

occupants of the City space.   

Funding of the $2.34 million dollar shortfall from the Parking Reserve will be repaid over a 7 

year period through future Cash in Lieu of parking contributions, future parking revenues and 

rental revenues from the expanded commercial space on Ellis within the library parkade. 

This could be advanced if parking revenues exceed estimates.  

Two other project options were investigated but determined to not be in the best long term 

interest of the City.  These were: 

Reduce project scope.   

Staff reviewed the option of reducing the project scope by building fewer stalls at the Ellis 

Parkade and relocating some of the IH parking to the Library Parkade.  However, this would 

not meet the City’s commitment for parking stall provision as outlined in the project 

agreement with IH.   

140



It would be possible to reduce the size of the proposed civic space at the Ellis Parkade, 

however the actual cost savings would be very small and the City would still need tosecure 

City office space.  The Ellis Parkade project will fund a shell (building envelope) and basic 

utility services for the space.  Costs will not change significantly if the size of the space is 

reduced. 

The Library Parkade scope could be reduced slightly by making the retail space smaller 

(effectively to the depth of a single parking stall), however this would result in a significant 

reduction in revenues (the price per square foot would have to drop as the space would have 

limited viability).  The cost savings of constructing smaller retail space would be small as the 

impact on cost of the basic building envelope and mechanical / electrical systems is minimal. 

The scope of the parking supply at the Library Parkade has already been reduced by removing 

the below grade expansion, which on a cost per stall basis, is the most expensive parking to 

be constructed. 

It is not practical to significantly further reduce the Library Parkade scope.  The project 

budget includes a visually appealing facade to ensure that it enhances the urban quality of 

the Cultural District. 

Change the project scope.   

It is possible to provide roughly the same overall number of parking stalls (630) at a single, 

larger Ellis Parkade.  A single parkade at Ellis would be approximately 21 metres in height.  

Due to the increased number of vehicles the traffic impact assessment identified an 

additional traffic signal on Ellis would be required at the parkade exit. 

A single parkade would be a significant change in project scope.  Since the project budget 

and AAP process were quite specific the City would need to redo the AAP process which would 

add cost and time to the project and therefore this option was not considered appropriate at 

this stage.   A 21 metre high parkade at this location is not in the best interest of the overall 

urban design of the site. 

Next Steps: 

With required project funding confirmed both projects will proceed to detailed design with a 

focus on the Library Parkade expansion since its completion is desired first.  Staff anticipate 

applying for a Development Permit in May and will hold a Public Information Session for public 

review on the Library Parkade expansion schematic design.  This session is expected to be 

held in late May or early June. 

Internal Circulation: 
General Manager, Community Sustainability 
Director, Design & Construction Services 
Supervisor, Communications 
 
 

141



Legal/Statutory Authority: 
Project borrowing for the amount of $14,000,000 for the Ellis Parkade and $1,000,000 for the 
Library Parkade expansion was approved in late 2012 through an Alternative Approval Process  
(Loan Authorization Bylaw No. 10742 Extension and New Facility Loan). 
  
External Agency/Public Comments: 
Staff have been communicating regularly with the Okanagan Heritage Museum Board with 
respect to the Ellis Parkade schematic design. 
 
Considerations not applicable to this report: 
 
Existing Policy: 
Personnel Implications: 
Financial/Budgetary Considerations: 
Communications Comments: 
Alternate Recommendation: 
Legal/Statutory Procedural Requirements: 
 
Submitted by:  
 

K. Van Vliet, Manager, Utility and Building Projects 
 
 
Approved for inclusion:                  
 
 
cc:  

  

142



DRAFT RESOLUTION 
 
 

Re:  Cancellation of the May 7, 2013 Public Hearing & Regular Meeting 
 
 
 
THAT the Public Hearing and Regular Meeting scheduled for Tuesday, May 7, 2013 be 
cancelled. 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
There are no items scheduled for the May 7, 2013 Public Hearing or Regular Meeting. 
 
 
 
 
Date: April 23, 2013 
File: 0550-01 

143



Report to Council 
 

 

Date: 

 
April 23, 2013 
 

Rim No. 
 

0600-10 

To:  
 

City Manager 
 

From: 
 

City Clerk 

Subject: 
 

BL10824 – Sterile Insect Release Program Parcel Tax Bylaw 2013 

 Report Prepared by: C. Boback, Legislative Coordinator 

 

Recommendation: 
 
THAT Bylaw No. 10824, being Sterile Insect Release Program Parcel Tax Bylaw 2013 be 
adopted. 
 
Purpose:  
 
To consider adoption of Bylaw No. 10824, being Sterile Insect Release Program Parcel Tax 
Bylaw 2013. 
 
Background: 
 
Bylaw No. 10824 received first three readings by Council on Monday, April 22, 2013.  A copy of 
the Bylaw is attached.  All legislative requirements have been met. 
 
 
 
Submitted by:  
 
 
 
S. Fleming, City Clerk 

144



145



146



147



148



149



150



151



152



153



154



155



156



157



158



Report to Council 
 

 

Date: 

 
April 16, 2013 
 

File: 
 

0600-10 

To:  
 

City Manager 
 

From: 
 

City Clerk 

Subject: 
 

BL10842 - Road Closure and Removal of Highway Dedication  - Portion of Land 
West of 4753 Gordon Drive 

 Report Prepared by: C. Boback, Legislative Coordinator 

 

Recommendation: 
 
THAT Council provides an opportunity for public input on the proposed road closure for 
BL10842 - Road Closure and Removal of Highway Dedication - Portion of Land West of 4753 
Gordon Drive; 
 
AND THAT Bylaw No. 10842 ,being Road Closure and Removal of Highway Dedication  - Portion 
of Land West of 4753 Gordon Drive be adopted. 
 
Purpose:  
 
To consider adoption of Bylaw No. 10842 being Road Closure and Removal of Highway 
Dedication - Portion of Land West of 4753 Gordon Drive. 
 
Background: 
 
Bylaw No. 10842 received first three readings by Council on Monday, April 15, 2013.  A copy of 
the Bylaw is attached.  The following conditions of adoption have been met: 
 

1. Newspaper Advertisements placed in local newspaper on Friday, April 19 and Friday, 
April 26,  2013 with the Monday, April 29,  2013 adoption date; 

2. Posted on Public Notice Board; 
 
Following an opportunity for the public to provide input at the Monday, April 29, 2013 
meeting of Council, the bylaw may be considered for adoption.  Registration at the Land 
Titles Office will proceed after the bylaw is adopted. 
 
Submitted by:  
 
 
S. Fleming, City Clerk 

159



160



161


	Agenda
	2. Minutes - April 22, 2013 PM Regular Meeting.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	4.1 HD13-0001 Elliot Council.docx
	Back to Agenda

	4.1 hd13-0001 attachments.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	4.1.1 Bylaw No. 10841 Heritage Designation.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	4.2 HRA12-0001 784 Elliot Council.docx
	Back to Agenda

	4.2 hra12-0001 attachments.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	4.2.1 Bylaw No. 10840 Heritage Revitalization Agreement Authorization Bylaw.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	4.3 DP13-0013 Nickel Council report.docx
	Back to Agenda

	4.3 dp13-0013 attachments.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	4.4 Z10-0044 RTC Ext Request Mar 2013 to Mar 2014.docx
	Back to Agenda

	4.4 z10-0044 attachment.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	4.5 Z10-0104 Extension Report Mar 7, 2013 to Mar 7, 2014.docx
	Back to Agenda

	4.5 z10-0104 attachment.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	4.6 Z10-0096 ext report Mar 8 2013 to Mar 8 2014.docx
	Back to Agenda

	4.6 z10-0096 attachment.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	4.7 Z07-0079 Extension report for Feb 4 2013 to Feb 4 2014.docx
	Back to Agenda

	4.7 z07-0079 attachment.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	5.1 2013-04-02 Okanagan Car Share Co-op parking spaces Council report.docx
	Back to Agenda

	5.1 2013-04-08 Appendix A Downtown Parking Spots.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	5.1 2013-04-08 Appendix B South Pandosy Parking Spot.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	5.2 Council Report Parkade Project Update 2013-04-22.docx
	Back to Agenda

	6.1 Draft Resolution - Cancellation of May 7 PH and Regular Meeting.doc
	Back to Agenda

	7.1 Adoption Report - BL10824.docx
	Back to Agenda

	7.1 bylaw no. 10824.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	7.2 Adoption Report - BL10842.docx
	Back to Agenda

	7.2 bl10842.pdf
	Back to Agenda


